) Earth Negotiations Bulleti

A Reporting Servicefor Environment and Devel opment Negotiations

Vol. 12 No. 118

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (11ISD)

Monday, 1 November 1999

FCCC COP-5HIGHLIGHTS
SATURDAY, 30 OCTOBER 1999

Delegates met in an afternoon session of the Joint Working
Group (JWG) on compliance to continue consideration of proce-
dures and mechanismsrelating to compliance under the Kyoto
Protocol. Contact groups met to consider: adverse effects; activities
implemented jointly (A1J); Annex | communications; capacity
building; land use, land-use change and forestry (LULUCF); non-
Annex | communications; and the Protocol mechanisms.

JOINT WORKING GROUP ON COMPLIANCE

Co-Chair Espen Ranneberg (Marshall Idlands) said the WG
had to report on itsprogressto COP-5 and request the COP to take
further stepsincluding, if necessary, the establishment of an ad hoc
working group on compliance. He said consultations had revealed
that the WG should continue itswork until COP-6. He presented
the Co-Chairs’ draft conclusions, aswell asadraft decision onthe
futurework of the WG

Thedraft conclusions state that, inter alia: much work needsto
be done and the IWG must move progressively toward negotiation;
the Co-Chairs should further devel op the elements of acompliance
procedure, incorporating Parties’ proposals; and this paper will
receive Parties' full consideration at SB-12 and serve asabasisfor
negotiation. Several delegates said the draft conclusions provided a
useful text towork on. SAUDI ARABIA, CHINA, theUS,
NIGERIA and BRAZIL said the paper developed by the Co-Chairs
should be based on more sources of information. Delegates
suggested that additional sources of information could be drawn
from existing and further submissions by Parties, aswell asdiscus-
sions held during the session of the WG and during apossible
forthcoming workshop. CHINA, IRAN and SAUDI ARABIA,
opposed by the EU and AUSTRALIA, suggested that the paper
serve asabasisfor “consideration” of compliance. NIGERIA
added that nothing in the Buenos Aires Plan of Action (BAPA)
required the WG tofinishitswork by COP-6. The UK, opposed by
the US, proposed that the paper serveas*“the” basisfor negotiations
on compliance at the next session of the IWG.

The operative paragraphs of the draft decision on thefuture
work of the WG on compliance requires the WG to “ continueits
work” beyond COP-5 and “completeitswork” before COP-6.
NEW ZEALAND, with AUSTRALIA, ARGENTINA, the US, the
EU, BAHAMAS, CHILE and the FEDERATED STATES OF
MICRONESIA, sought to retain the phrase “ completeitswork,” as
Parties had aresponsibility to achieve the objectives of the BAPA
and it would be difficult to justify aless ambitious goal. CHINA,
NIGERIA and SAUDI ARABIA sought alternative language

supporting substantial progressby COP-6. A revised Co-Chairs
draft conclusionsand decision based on Parties' suggestionswill be
available on Monday.

CONTACT GROUPS

AlJ: Chair de Boer (Netherlands) introduced draft conclusions
on “learning by doing” and capacity building, geographic distribu-
tion, and additional project incentives. He reported contact with
regional co-ordinatorsand invited Partiesto commence a para-
graph-by-paragraph reading of hisdraft decision. A preambular
paragraph was amended to specify that AlJunder the pilot phase
are undertaken within the FCCC framework. Two preambular para-
graphs were merged after discussion on geographic distribution.
The new paragraph acknowledges the importance of “learning by
doing” under the pilot phase and of providing new AlJ opportuni-
tiesto Partiesthat have not experienced them. On the paragraph on
continuation of AlJ, the Chair noted Parties' interest in what will
happen under the mechanisms. Hisdraft compromise text, placed
in brackets, recordsadecision by the Partiesto concludethereview
process and, without prejudiceto future decisionsregarding project
eligibility, continuethe AlJpilot phase.

ADVERSE EFFECTS: Co-Chair Salamat (Iran) presented the
Co-Chairs' draft decision on theimplementation of FCCC Articles
4.8 and 4.9. He outlined the text’s operative paragraphs, including:
aprocessto addressinformation gathering; the convening of two
distinct workshops on the effects of climate change and response
measures; examination of actionsrelating to funding, insurance
and the transfer of technology; and arequest to the subsidiary
bodiesto continue consideration of these Articles. Delegates
discussed the preambul ar paragraphs and agreed to introduce anew
paragraph “ acknowledging the efforts already made by country
Parties towards meeting the specific needs and concerns of devel-
oping country Parties, in particular |east devel oping countries, with
regard to adaptation.” The Co-Chairswill present aclean pream-
bular text on Monday.

ANNEX | COMMUNICATIONS: Thisjoint contact group
concluded itswork and agreed to forward thefollowing documents,
asamended, to therelevant subsidiary bodie: SBI draft conclusions
and adraft decision and annex on guidelinesfor the technical
review of greenhouse gas (GHG) inventoriesfrom Annex | Parties;
SBSTA draft conclusionsand adraft decision; Part |1 of the guide-
lines on national communications; and FCCC reporting guidelines
on global climate observing systems.

CAPACITY BUILDING: Thiscontact group continued
consideration of the Co-Chairs' proposal for adraft decision on
capacity building. The group worked through the operative para-
graphsand discussed, inter alia: how financial and technical
capacity building should be provided; whether to have acompre-
hensive assessment of capacity building activitiesto determine

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © (enb@iisd.org) iswritten and edited by PaolaBettelli (pbettelli @iisd.org), Chad Carpenter (chadc@iisd.org), Angela Churie
(churie@l kth.se), Lavanya Rajamani (lavanya.rajamani @hertford.ox.ac.uk), Chris Spence (spencechris@hotmail.com) and Juliette Voinov (cedrickohler@msn.com). The
Editor is Pamela Chasek, Ph.D. (pam@iisd.org) and the Managing Editor is Langston James "Kimo" Goree (kimo@iisd.org). The WWW Content Editor is Peter Doran
(pfdoran@ecology.u-net.com). Digital engineering by Andrei Henry (ahenry@iisd.ca), Kenneth M. Tong (k8o@interlog.com) and Richard Stokes (rstokes@iisd.ca).
Photography by Leila Mead (leila@interport.net). French translation by Mongi Gadhoum (mongi.gadoum@enb.intl.tn). Logistics coordinated by P.J. Goldfeder
(pigold14@aol.com). The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Canada (through CIDA), the United States
(through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forests and L andscape, the United Kingdom Department for International Development (DFID) and the European
Commission (DG-XI1). Genera Support for the Bulletin during 1999 is provided by the German Federal Ministry of Environment (BMU) and the German Federal Ministry
of Development Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Ministries of Environment and Foreign Affairsof Austria, the Ministries of Foreign Affairs
and Environment of Norway, the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Ministry of Environment of Finland, the Government of Sweden, the United Nations Development
Programme (UNDP), the Global Environment Facility (GEF) and the Ministry for the Environment in Iceland. Specific funding for this meeting has been provided by the
UNFCCC Secretariat. The Bulletin can be contacted by e-mail at (enb@iisd.org) and at tel: +1-212- 644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. |1SD can be contacted by e-mail at
(info@iisd.ca) and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y 4, Canada. The opinions expressed in the Earth Negotiations Bulletin are those of the
authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11SD and other funders. Excerpts from the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publications only
and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this material in commercial publications, contact the Managing Editor. Electronic versions are sent to e-
mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/. The satellite image by The Living Earth, Inc., at http://
www.livingearth.com. For information on the ENB, send e-mail to (enb@iisd.org).




Monday, 1 November 1999

e

Vol. 12 No. 118 Page 2

their effectiveness, gaps and weaknesses; and whether to elaborate
on activitiesto support national capacity-building activitiesfor
FCCC implementation or on the particularsfor acomprehensive
assessment. They bracketed anumber of paragraphs and agreed to
reconvenein aFriends of the Chairs' meeting on Monday to draft
the proposal for adecision.

LULUCF: Co-Chairs Thorgeirsson (Iceland) and Gwage
(Uganda) informed the group of adraft decision they had prepared
on LULUCF-related methodological issues, including aspects
relating to submissions by Parties on: definitions and activitieson
Protocol Article 3.3 (net changesin emissionsand removals); alist
of activitiesthat each individual Party isseeking to include under
Article 3.4 (additional human-induced activitiesrelating to
changesin emissions and removals); views on possible modalities,
rulesand guidelines on additional activitiesunder Protocol Article
3.4; and arequest for the Secretariat to compile alist of guiding
principlesand criteriafor the identification and sel ection of addi-
tional activitiesunder Article 3.4. The G-77/CHINA said it had
prepared adraft decision covering similar aspectsand including
others such as guidance on the scope of the workshop on the IPCC
Special Report. Many delegations noted similarities between the
two texts, and agreed to follow the sequencing of paragraphsinthe
G-77/CHINA proposal asabasisfor discussions. The group read
through the text and established a drafting group to work oniit.
Differing viewsfocused on, inter alia: the sequence of activitiesin
thelead-up to SBSTA-12 and how they interrelate; presentation
and transmission of the IPCC Special Report to SBSTA-12; timing
for submissionsand consideration of criteriaand guiding principles
for dataon additional activities; timing for submissions and
proposalsfor definitionson activities under Article 3.3; and timing
for and types of country-specific data. The contact group recon-
vened to consider progress made by the drafting group, working
lateinto the night.

MECHANISMS: Delegates considered the project cycle of the
CDM. The G-77/CHINA stressed the need to addressthe CDM’'s
driving force, nature and scope. AUSTRALIA said the CDM
should belargely private sector driven. He added that investors
needed to know that creditswill be forthcoming.

Severa Parties agreed that the host country isthe best judge of
its sustainabl e devel opment needs. NORWAY inquired about the
role of operational entitiesin the validation and pre-registration of
project proposals, noting that the Executive Board may not be able
to carry out thistask.

SOUTH AFRICA, the SUDAN, BOLIVIA, MEXICO and
MAURITANIA suggested that the CDM include the concept of
emissions avoidance. BOLIVIA proposed including forest protec-
tioninitiatives under emissions avoidance. MEXICO said he
looked forward to using the CDM to supplement national effortsto
shift from slash-and-burn techniques, which are responsible for
loss of forest cover, to sustainable technologiesthat would have a
positiveimpact on climate change. MAURITANIA objected to the
inclusion of forest protection withinthe CDM, as Partieswould
seek to protect their forestsregardless of itsinclusion. IRAN said
the CDM should include projectsrelated to both sinks and sources.
Ontheissue of baselinesfor emissions avoidance projects, NEW
ZEALAND suggested that, to minimize transaction costs, the
commercia contract-bidding process should be used to identify the
baseline. The EU said the baselines should be determined on a
project-by-project basis.

SWITZERLAND said that in considering the types of projects
that are eligible, possible negative spillover effectsinto other multi-
|ateral domains should be taken into consideration. MOROCCO
stressed the need to certify that reduced or avoided emissionsare
real, measurable and contribute to sustainable development in the

host country. With SWITZERLAND, she said CDM projects
should be subjected to rigorousimpact assessment studiesthat take
into account the soci 0-economic aspects of the host country.

Onthefinancing of CDM projects, Chair Chow (Malaysia)
gueried whether the funding will be bilateral, multilateral or unilat-
eral; if ODA and the FCCC'sfinancial mechanismscould fund
CDM activities; or if CDM fundswill be managed by the Executive
Board, so asto ensure equitabledistribution. MAURITANIA asked
how transparency of and accountability for theinvestment will be
ensured.

Onunilateral funding of CDM projects, JAPAN asked whether
unilaterally-funded projects were consistent with the concept of
CDM. The REPUBL IC OF KOREA said unilateral funding for
CDM would provideincentivesfor non-Annex | Partiestoimple-
ment measures to reduce GHGs. COLOMBIA highlighted the
potential of indigenous private sector projects. He said that aslong
asCDM projects demonstrate additionality and lead to real and
measurabl e long-term reductions, there should beflexibility in
financing the projects. On unilateral CDM, NEW ZEALAND
noted that additionality would require careful judgments.

Regarding the use of ODA and GEF funds, the EU said CDM
funding should not compete with these sources but that we would
be open to discussion of all optionsaslong as conditionsfor valida-
tion and certification are met. The G-77/CHINA emphasized that
CDM funding should be over and above ODA, GEF and other
financial commitments. JAPAN said there were no provisions
requiring financial additionality and nonethat preclude the use of
ODA asasource of funding. He said the CDM should be mainly
funded by the private sector. The G-77/CHINA said funding addi-
tionality flowsfrom thefact that the purpose of the CDM isto assist
Annex | Partiesin attaining their commitments

NON-ANNEX | COMMUNICATIONS: Chair El Ghaouth
(Mauritania) suggested that work on adraft decision on matters
related to the consideration of non-Annex | communications
continue in the drafting group. The G-77/CHINA said it was clear
from the agreement at COP-4 that second national communications
would be funded without further guidelines. El Ghaouth said the
costsrelated to thisdraft decision would be met by extrabudgetary
sources. He added that SBI would consider on Monday thedecision
currently being discussed in the drafting group, the issue of the
contingency budget for non-Annex | communications, and adeci-
sion on the compilation and synthesis of initial communications.

IN THE CORRIDORS

A draft decision being prepared by devel oping countries has
stirred some concern in the corridors. The draft proposal would
limit the decision on capacity building to climate change consider-
ations. Supporters of an all-encompassing approach to capacity
building arguethat their approach would be cost effective and more
consistent with the associated benefits of sustainable development.
However, those in support of focusing capacity building on climate
change stressthat it must follow the mandate of the FCCC if the
limited pot of funding isto be used effectively and producetangible
results. They say decisions on comprehensive capacity building
must await amaturing of linkages across Convention ingtitutions.

THINGSTO LOOK FOR TODAY
SBSTA: SBSTA isscheduled to meet at 10:00 am.
SBI: SBI is scheduled to meet at 4:00 pm.
JWG: The WG on complianceisexpected to meet at 8:00 pm.
Consult the announcement board for further details.



